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Mombasa County Assembly Car Loan and Mortgage Fund
Annual Repo rt and Financial Statements for the year ended June 30' 2023

1. Acronyms and Glossary of Terms

a) Acronyms

b) Glossary of Terms
Fiduciary Management The key management personnel who had financial responsibility

Provide a list ofAcronyms and Key terms used in the financial report as per above example. The list
to be exhaustive)

lll

CASB

FY

ICPAK

IPSAS

MCA

MOU

PFM

PSASB

Kshs

SRC

County Assembly Service Board

Financial Year

Institute of Certified Public Accountants of Kenya

Intemational Public Sector Accounting Standards

Member of County Assembly

Memorandum of Understanding

Public Finance Management

Public Sector Accounting Standards Board

Kenya Shillings

Salaries and Remuneration Commission



M mbasa County Assembly Car Loan and Mortgage Fund
ual Re ort and Financial Statements for the year ended June 30, 2023

) Key Entity Information and Management

a) Background information

C ty Assembly of Mombasa Car loan & Mortgage Fund is established by and derives its authority
accountability vide County Assembly Members and Staff Car Loan Regulations (2018), duly

ed under Kenya Gazette Supplement N0.2 dated 27h March'2018. The Fund is wholly owned
by e County Government of Mombasa and is domiciled in Kenya.

rat
fund's objective is to advance loans to staffand Members of the County Assembly at competitive

s as guided by circulars from Salaries and Remuneration Commission (SRC) on Car Loan &

sy
m

M gage Schemes for State Officers and other public officers

Th Fund's principal activity is to source for funding from the Controller of Budget, through the
ty Treasury, advance loans to Members of the Assembly and recover through payroll check off
m and plough back the same to the revolving fund for further issuance of loans to qualifuing
bers of the Assembly.

b) Principal Activities

principal activity/mission/ mandate of the Fund is to issue affordable loans to staffand members
of e County Assembly of Mombasa and recover the same vide payroll deductions to ensure the

is revolving, self-sustaining and that all loans issued are duly recovered before end of the
As bly (five years of representation for MCA's)

c) Board of TrusteeslFund Administration Committee

Chairperson Salim Juma Mwalimu

Member Hon.Ali Omar Shariff

Hon.Kibwana Swaleh Baya

I Hon.Athman Rama Mwamwrrr

Member Clara Wonge Mwachoki

( I Member Penina Mwikali James

Member Paul Mutungi Mulila

t Member

( Member Alfred Jilo Kidai

I 0 Member Christine Aqua Mududa

I I Member Aswif Abdalla Amur

lv

Ref Position Name

Member

Member

Abdalla Ali Abeid
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Mombasa County Assembly Car Loan and Mortgage Fund

Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended June 30, 2023

Key Entity and Management (Continued)

d) Key Management Team

e) Fiduciary OversightArrangements

0 Registered Offices

County Assembly Building
P.O. Box 80438 80100
Mombasa
KENYA

g) Fund Contacts

Telephone: (+254) 41 2311 025
E-mail: info@mombasaassembly.go.ke Website:

www.mombasaassembly. go.ke

h) Fund Bankers
1. Central Bank of KenYa

Haile Selassie Avenue
P.O. Box 60000
City Square 00200
Nairobi, Kenya

Salim Juma MwalimuFund Manager/ AdministratorI

Paul Mutungi Mulila2 Fund Accountant

Hon. Athman Rama Mwamwiri3 Member of County Assembly

Hon. Ali Omar ShariffMember of County Assembly4

Clara Wonge MwachokiDirector, Human Resource5

Penina Mwikali JamesPayroll Manager6

tGIIt'a]rrIriIi

Directorate Internal Audit1

2 Committee on Finance, Budget and

Appropriation

J Public Accounts Committee

Name

NamePositionSN



ombasa County Assembly Car Loan and Mortgage Fund
ort and Financial Statements for the ear ended June 30, 2023

ey Entity and Management (Continued)

SBM Bank (K) Ltd
Old Town Branch
Mombasa
Kenya

GulfAfrican Bank
Bondeni Branch
Mombasa
Kenya

Auditor General
Office of the Auditor General
Anniversary Towers, University Way
P.O. Box 30084
GPO 00100
Nairobi, Kenya

Principal Legal Adviser

The Attorney General
State Law Office
Harambee Avenue
P.O. Box 40112
City Square 00200
Nairobi, Kenya

) County Attorney

The County Attomey
P.O. Box 81599
GPO 80100
Mombasa, Kenya

nual Re

2

3

vl

Independent Auditors
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Mombasa CountY AssemblY Car Loan and Mortgage Fund

Annual RePort and Financia I Statements for the Year ended

3. Board of Trustees/ Fund Administration Committee

June 30' 2023

Hon.Aharub Ebrahim Khatri

County AssemblY Clerk, Secretary

OrraIifi cations and ernerience

Holder of Master's Business Administration-Strategic

Management. He has more than 25 years of extensive working

experience in the public service rising through the ranks to senior

and top management Positions'

Salim Juma Mwalimu

Member of CountY AssemblY, Member

Oualifi cations nnd etnerience

Currently a Nominated Member of County Assembly and

Member of the County Assembly Service Board' She has

experience in public service spanning over a year period'

Hon.Florence Mkanja la Kachumbo
3. Trustee 3

Hon. Ali Omar Shariff
4. Trustee 4

vl1

qualifications and experienceDetails ofName

Speaker of the Assembly, Chairman-County Assembly Service

Board

Orrrlifi cations and etnerience

Current political leader of the Third County Assembly of

Mombasa.

l. Trustee I

I
L 7tn

I.-.

2. Trustee 2

Member of CountY AssemblY, Member

Oualifi cntions and e*Jrerience

CurrentlytheelectedMemberofCountyAssemblyrepresenting

TononokaWardandaMemberoftheCountyAssemblyService

Board. He has vast experience in public service spanning over a

6year period.

a \
a,



mbasa County Assembly Car Loan and Mortgage Fund
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4 Management Team

ual Re

1. SalimJumaMwalimu Salim Juma Mwalimu

Fund Administrator

County Assembly Clerk

Oualifi cetions and exnerience

Holder of Master's Business Administration-Snategic

Management. He has extensive 25 years working

experience in the public service rising through the ranks

to senior and top management positions.

2. Hon.Athman Rama Mwamwiri Hon.Athman Rama Mwamwiri

Member of County Assembly

Oualifi cations and experience

Elected Member of the County Assembly representing

the Likoni Ward and the County Assembly Majority

Leader. Has experience in public service spanning over

a 6 year period.

3. Hon. Kibwana Swaleh Baya Hon.Kibwana Swaleh Baya

Member of County Assembly

Oualifi cations and erperience

Currently the elected Member of County Assembly

representing Miritini Ward and the Chairman of the

Committee on Finance, Budget and Appropriation. He

has vast experience in public service spanning over an

l l year period.

4. Hon. Ali Omar Shariff Hon.Ali Omar Shariff

Member of County Assembly

Oualifi cations and exDerience

Currently the elected Member of County Assembly

representing Tononoka Ward and Member of the

County Assembly Service Board. He has experience in

public service spanning over a 6year period.

vlll

Name Details of qualifications and experience

)
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\
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Mombasa CountY Assembly Car Loan and Mortgage Fund

Annual Re ort and Financial Statements for the ear ended June 30, 2023

Director Human Resowces and Administration

Oualifi cations end erperience

Holder of Master's Business Administration Degree-

Strategic Management. Member of the Institute of

Human Resource Management, IHRM' She has 25 years

of experience in the public service rising through the

ranks to senior leadership positions.

Clara Wonge Mwacho ki
e Mwachoki5. Clara Wong

6. Penina Mwikali James

Paul Mutungi Mulila

Senior Accountanl

Oualificetions and erPerience

Holder of a Bachelor's Degree in Education

(Business/Economics) and a Certified Public

Accountant, CPA(K). Has over 20 years' experience

serving in various senior positions in the public and

private sectors.

Abdallah Ali Abeid

Senior Supply Chain Officer

Oualifications end erperience

Holder of a Master's Degree in Strategic Management'

Also a Member and a licensed procurement practitioner

of Kenya Institute of Supplies Management' Has overl0

years' experience serving in various senior positions in

the public and Private sectors.

lx

t

l
\-

Penina Mwikali James

Payroll Manager

Oualifications and exnerience

Holder of Master's Business Administration Degree-

Strategic Management. Member of the Institute of

Human Resource Management, IHRM' She has 25 years

of experience in the public service rising through the

ranks to senior leadership positions.

I

8. Abdallah Ali Abeid
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9. Alfred Jilo Kidai Alfred Jilo Kidai

Senior Fiscal Analyst

Oualifi cations and erDerience

Holder of Bachelor's Degree in Commerce (Finance)

and a certified Financial Modelling and Valuation

Analyst (FMVA@). Has l5 years' experience serving in

various senior positions in the public andprivate sectors.

10. Christine Aqua Mududa

I 1. Aswif Abdalla Amur

x

T

l

T

Christine Aqua Mududa

Senior Legal Counsel

Oualifications and experience

Advocate of the High Court of Kenya. A Certified Public

Secretary, CPS(K). Has over 7 years experience serving

in a senior position in the public and private sector.

\

7LI
Aswif Abdalla Amur

Senior Inlernal Auditor

Oualifi cations and ernerience

Holder of a Degree in Business Administration. Hasover

l0 years' experience serving in various positions inthe

public and private sectors.
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Annual Re ort and Financial Statements for the

Nam6S4. f.{ n ....ltJ.Y.f!.

Chairperson of the Fund

ear ended June 30, 2023

x:7:-J

5. Board/Fund Chairperson's Report

The chairperson of the Fund is responsible for the preparation and p^resentation of the Fund's

financial statements, *nrcf, gir" a true a.rd fair view of the state of affairs of the Car Loan and

f,fongug" Fund for-the JunI 30,2023. This responsibility includes: (i) maintaining- adeq.ate

financial management u..urri"."ntt and enswing that these continue.to be effective throughout

ihe reporting pLioa; (ii) mai-ntaining proper accounting records, which disclose with reasonable

u""*u"y at any time the financial position of the Fund;

(iii) designing, implementing and maintaining intemal controls relevant to the preparation and fair

irrr.ntuiion 1f itre financial statements, and ensuring lhat they are free from material

misstatements, wtrettrer due to error or fraud; (iv) safeguarding the assets of the Fund; (v) selecting

and applying upp,op,iut" accounting policies; and (vi) making accounting estimatesthat are

reasonable in the circumstances.

The Fund Chairperson accepts responsibility for the Fund's financial statements' which have been

prepared on the Accrual Basis of fi,ancial Reporting, using appr91>1ate accounting policies in

accordance with International public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS). The Chairpersonis of

the opinion that the county Assembly's car Loan and Mortgage Fund's financial statements give a

true and fair view ofthe siate ofthe hund's transactions foithe year ended 3Oth June, 2023 and of

its financial position as at that date. The Chairperson further.confirms the completeness of the

accounting records maintained for Fund which have been relied upon in the preparation of the

financial statements as well as the adequacy of the systems of intemal financialcontrol'

The Fund Chairperson confirms full compliance to applicable Govemment Regulations and that

the Car Loan and ft{o.tgug" n rds received during thJyear were used for the eligible purposes for

which they were inteided and were properly accounted for. Further the Fund Chairperson

confirms that the Fund's financial statements 
-have 

been prepared in a form that complies with

relevant accounting ,*a*a, prescribed by the Public Sector Accounting Standards Board of

Kenya.

Approval of the financial statements

The County Assembly of Mombasa Car Loan and Mortgage Fund unaudited financial statements

*"."upprou"dandsignedbytheFundChairpersononSeptember262023'

Signed:

...si

xl



mbasa Counfy Assembly Car Loan and Mortgage Fund
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6 Report of The Fund Administrator

County Assembly of Mombasa Car Loan & Mortgage Fund was operationalized in 2014 via
resolution of the then County Assembly Service Board and sought to comply with the provisions
f the PFM Act2012 through the guidance of SRC Circulars on Car Loan & Mortgage Scheme,
t this never materialized during the First Assembly

owever, the necessary regulations were enacted and published under Kenya Gazette Supplement
0.2of 276 March 2018. Under the regulations, a Committee to be known as the Mombasa County
sembly Car Loan and Mortgage Fund Management Committee was established comprising of:-

o The Clerk as Chairperson
o Chairman of Budget & Appropriation committee
. Head of Fiscal Analysis Department
o Head of Accounts Department
. Head of Human Resource Department who, shall be secretary to the Committee
o The Committee to co-opt any other person(s) to attend its meetings for purposes of

assisting or advising it discharge its responsibilities.

The County Assembly of Mombasa's initial Car loan and Mortgage Fund (2013-2018) was
financed from the County's Printed Estimates and a sum of KSh.20Million was wired directly to
the Fund account at Chase Bank Iman. The then County Assembly Service Board had signed an
MOU with Chase Bank Iman to disburse loans to all Members of the first Assembly who had
applied and qualified for loans based on one third rule (l/3rd). Further, the MOU between the
County Assembly of Mombasa and Chase Bank had provided for the fund to be shored up to
KSh.220 million by disbursing in installments of KSh.20Million each over the ensuing ten (10)
months to Chase Bank from County Treasury to build the fund to a sum of KSh.220Million.

These disbursements were however not effected during the life of the First Assembly, thus the
revolving fund stood at Ksh.20Million for all the financial years to 2018-2019. This
notwithstanding, Chase Bank Iman went ahead to operationalize the MOU and disbursed loans
amounting to KSh.l04Million to Members of the first Assembly. The balances of un-repaid and
owed to County Assembly of Mombasa from this arrangement amount to KSh.6,437,367 as per
the list herein appended.

Hon MUNYIKA Karisa Nzai 959,719.95
Hon KAI Beatrice Santa I ,7 I 0,5 I 3.95

Hon HAMISI Saada Rajab (deceased) 2,010,585.75

Hon.ZUBERI Amina Raiab (deceased) t.756.546.65

TOTAL 6,437,366.90

The necessary actions have since been taken by the current Committee of Car Loan and Mortgage
Fund for these amounts to be recovered from the beneficiaries besides looking for modalities of

xll



Mombasa County Assembly Car Loan and Mortgage Fund

and Financial Statements for the year ended June 30, 2023Annual Report
writing off the loans due from the two deceased Members of County Assembly (as guided by PFM

Si

lm Juma Mwalimu

FI.TND ADMINISTRATOR

Act and other Regulations).

It is worth to note that The County Assembly Services Board in the Second Assembly signed an

MOU with l {/S Gulf African Bank, Bondeni branch, to disburse loans to the MCA's in this Second

house at first, but the arrangement did not quite take off and the Committee took over theloan

application, vetting and processing mandates to this day'

tnin" fni.a Assembly, ihe appro-ved budget for the County Assembly of Mombasa Car Loan&

Mortgage Fund during the FY2O22D3 was Ksh.2o0Million. Further, KSh.121 Million was

aistr.isJa to the appointed Fund bankers, Gulf African Bank for the year under review. The fund

therefore experienced a shortfall of KSh.79 Million,representing a39.5%o shortfall for the year

ended 30 June 2023.

xlll
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Statement of Performance Against the County Fund's Predetermined Objectives

In roduction

7

Section 164 (2) (f) of the Public Finance Management Act,2012 requires that, at the end of each

fin[ncial year, the Accounting Offrcer when preparing financial statements of each County

Gdvemment entity in accordance with the standards and formats prescribed by the Public Sector

Aryounting Standards Board includes a statement of the county govemment entity's performance
i

ag{inst predetermined objectives.

Thp key objectives of the County Assembly of Mombasa Car Loan & Mortgage Fund for the year

ended 30 Jwrc2023 plan are to:

a) Provide timely and affordable loans to staffand members of County Assembly.

i b) Effect monthly recoveries of loans advanced through check off.

c) Ensure loans are fully recovered before end ofpolitical life ofthe current Assembly.

I d) Ensure efficient effective and prudent management of car loan and mortgage funds.
l

Thb Final budget for the County Assembly of Mombasa Car Loan & Mortgage Fund during the

fUl,OZZtZl was KSh.2O0Million, with the same expected to be availed on pro rata by the County
I

Tr(asury up to the endof the year under review. However, only KSh.l2lMillion wasdisbursed

to the appointed Fund bankers, Gulf African Bank uptothe end of the of the year2022123.T\e

funld therefore experienced a shortfall of KSh.Tgmillion, representing a 4}Yoyeru to date shortfall.
I

The 40% year to date shortfall hampered the achievement of the FY2022123 plan of issuing loans to

Staff of the County Assembly of Mombasa and to all Members of the County Assembly with only
I

M0As benefitting from Car Loans and Mortgage loans and none of the members of Staff benefitting.

t

Iw envisage a scenario of more disbursements that will enable the Committee to issue Loans to both

MQAs and Members of staffto improve on the numbers of beneficiaries

xlv
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Below we provide the progress on attaining the stated objectives:

By end of the 4th

Quarter of FY

2022123

Fourteen eligible

Members of

County Assembly

benefitted from

car loans and

mortgages while

zero (0) members

of staffbenefitted

o/o of Members

of the County

Assembly and

employees of

the County

Assembly

owning personal

cars and

residential

properties in the

County

Assembly

Increased number of

Members of the

County Assembly

and employees of

the County

Assembly accessing

personal cars and

residential property

ownership

To provide

funds for

granting car

loans and

mortgages to

Members of the

County

Assembly and

employees of

the County

Assembly as

may be

prescribed from

time to time by

the Salaries and

Remuneration

Commission.

Car Loans and

Mortgages

Performance

0% forthe MCA's

100 % of

Members of the

County

Assembly own

personal cars

and existing car

loans were fully

converted to car

grants in the

County

Assembly

Increased number of

Members of the

County Assembly

accessing or

converting existing

car loans to grants

and ownership

therein

To provide

funds for

granting car

grants to

Members of the

County

Assembly as

may be

prescribed from

time to time by

the SRC.

Car Grants

xv

PcrformanceIndicatorOutcomeObjectiveProgram
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Corporate Governance Statement

e Fund Administration Committee was established by the Public Finance Management

ombasa County Assembly Members and Staff Car Loan and Mortgage Fund) Regulations,

0l 8. Up to the end of the fourth quarter of the FY2022/23, the Committee held 5 I meetings with

ndance as guided by the Regulations in form of quorum. The Regulations allow for a maximum

f eight (8) meetings and a minimum of two (2) meetings each month. The determinant of the

quency of these meetings being matters and agendas related to the objectives of the Fund

embership to the Committee is as stipulated under the Regulations with representation as

ghlighted therein. Any change to membership is to be formally done through amendments that

I be gazetted and published to be formalised. The succession and change of membership is to

t to Regulation 2 of the Public Finance Management (Mombasa County Assembly

mbers and Staff Car Loan and Mortgage Fund), members to the committee shall comprise the

C erk of the County Assembly (Fund Manager); the Chairperson of the County Assembly

C mmittee on Budget, Finance and Appropriation (or its replacement); the Head of Fiscal Analysts

partment; the Head of Accounts Department; the Head of Human Resource Department; the

ad of Legal Department; the Head of Audit Department; and any person co- opted to attend

mmittee meetings for purposes of assisting or advising the Committee.

per Regulations, the Clerk of the County Assembly plays the role of Fund Manager with the

D

H

C

of Accounts and that of Human Resources being the Fund Accountant and Secretary to the

mmittee respectively. The other general functions ofthe Committee are

a) To process applications for a car loan and /or mortgage in accordance with the existing
terms and conditions of bonowing;

To formulate sound policies for regulating the management ofthe Fund; to raise and solicit
for funds and other assistance to promote the functions of the Committee;

c) To receive any gifts, donations, grants or endowment made to the Fund and to make
legitimate disbursements there from;

To establish links with financial institutions for the furtherance of the purposes for which
the Fund is established;

) To grant loans and mortgages, as the Committee may deem fit to eligible applicants;

(0 To perform and exercise all other functions and powers conferred to the Committee by these
Regulations or any other law.

xvl

guided by Section 6(l) ofthe Regulations.
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The Committee is allowed by the Regulations to delegate the functions of appraising and

approving loans and managing the Fund to a commercial bank approved or designated by it as an

agent of the Committee. This arrangement is however only executed as the said bank being an

agent of the Committee.

The Committee has succeeded in processing car loans and mortgage loans applications for 14

Members of the Third County Assembly for the fourth quarter of the financial year 2022123.

Further, loans paid out to Members of County Assembly are all being recovered through payroll.

The processing of applications and running of affairs of the fund was done in a series of meetings

with member's attendance and performance highlighted in the table below:

Cunently, there is no formal provision for induction and training of the Administration Committee

though need for the same to be formally gazetted has been noted for the future. TheRegulations

are also being checked for amendments to address the matter of conflict of interest. The issues of

board remuneration are adequately Jd..rr.d by the Salaries and RemunerationCommission

which provides for allowances payable for task forces, boards and committees. The Committee

100% Chair51/51Salim Juma Mwalimu

61% Member3l/srHon.Athman Rama Mwamwtn

45% Member23151Hon.Kibwana Swaleh Baya

Member45%23151Hon.Ali Omar Shariff

Member100%5l/51Clara Wonge Mwachoki

100% Member51/51Penina Mwikali James

Member39%20151Aswif Abdalla Amur

100% Member5v5tPaul Mutungi Mulila

Member84%43/51Abdalla Ali Abeid

Member5y5t l00YoAlfred Jilo Kidai

Member43/51 84%Christine Aqua Mududa

IitrIIiEIItr[ I\znlm.rfrl,fl

xvll

Name Number of

meetings

participated



Mombasa County Assembly Car Loan and Mortgage Fund
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therefore been complying with the provisions of the SRC circular on remuneration of members

committees as this

inally, the Committee has not undertaken any ethics and conduct as well as govemance audit on

Fund and its activities though the same has been brought to the attention of the Committee for

consideration and action

igned:

Juma Mwalimu

ADMINISTRATOR

xvlll
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ended June 30,2023

9. Management Discussion and Analysis

The Financial Statements cover the period from J:uiry | 2022, to June 30 2023 and account for

KSh.25 I Million; KSh.20 Million directly disbursed by County Government of Mombasa during

the First Assembly of 2013-2018, KSh.llOMillion was disbursed from County Assembly of
Mombasa,s Central Bank account to the Fund's Gulf African Bank account during the Second

Assembly of 2019-2022, Kshs.l05Million was disbursed from County Assembly of Mombasa's

Central B*k u""o*t to the Fund's Gulf African Bank account in the fourth quarter of the

FY2O22I23 while l6M was cash in transit as at 30 Jtne2023'

It is worthwhile to note that of the KSh.25lMillion being accounted for, KSh.28Million was

converted to Car grant with Ksh.223Million being available for the revolving fund aspect. Further,

the KSh.2gMillion Fund created during the First Assembly had loads of administrative diffrculties

some of which are yet to be resolved to this day.

Balance available at Bank at the beginning of the financial year was KSh.14.04Million. During

the year under review, the fund received KSh. 12 I Million, with KSh. 1 6M being cash in transit as

at 3bs June 2023. Of the funds available during the year under review, mortgage and car loans

worth Kshs.l l0.3Million were disbursed, while a further Kshs.8.4Million was paid to the Kenya

Revenue Authority to clear pending taxes on car grants paid out to MCAs of the Second Assembly.

The Final budget for the County Assembly of Mombasa Car Loan& Mortgage Fund for the

Financial year iOZZ-ZOZI was KSh.2OOMillion. Of the said budget, KSh. l05Million was disbursed

to the Fund bankers, Gulf African Bank while 16M was cash in transit as at June 30 2023. The

fund therefore faced a shortfall of KSh.TgMillion, representing a 39 .5o/o shortfall as at the end of
the year.

This shortfall notwithstanding, all the members of the Third Assembly who had applied for loans

during the year fully benefitted from Car loan and mortgage up to the end of the financial year

under review.

Going forward, the Committee seeks to consider loan applications from all eligible members of
staff iryho have applied for loans so as to benefit from the existing funding level as we envisage a

top up to and tudgeted level of over KSh.300Million

ommittee

Date: aqlor\e^ *

xlx
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tr0. Environmental and Sustainability Reporting

{he County Assembly of Mombasa exists to offer quality services to the residents. This is our
pupose; the driving force behind everything we do. It's what guides us to deliver our strategy,

which is founded on 9 pillars: transparency, non-discrimination, efficiency and effectiveness,
integrity, accountability, meritocracy, professionalisrn, teamwork and rule of law.

I Sustainability stratery and profile -
The top management especially the accounting officer should make reference to
sustainable efforts, broad trends in political and macroeconomic affecting sustainability
priorities, reference to international best practices and key achievements and failure.

2. Environmental performance
Outline clearly, environmental policy guiding the organisation, provide evidence of the
policy. Outline successes, shortcomings, efforts to manage biodiversity, waste
management policy and efforts to reduce environmental impact of the organisation's
products.

3. Employee welfare
Give account of the policies guiding the hiring process and whether they take into account
the gender ratio, whether they take in stakeholder engagements and how often they are

improved. Explain efforts made in improving skills and managing careers, appraisal and
reward systems. The organisation should also disclose their policy on safety and
compliance with Occupational Safety and Health Act of 2007, (OSHA.)

Market place practices-
The organisation should outline its efforts to:

a) Responsible competition practice.
Explain how the organisation ensures responsible competition practices with issues

like anti-com.rption, responsible political involvement, fair competition and respect

for competitors
b) Responsible Supply chain and supplier relations- explain how the organisation

maintains good business practices, treats its own suppliers responsibly by
honouring contracts and respecting payment practices.

c) Responsible marketing and advertisement-outline efforts to maintain ethical
marketing practices

d) Product stewardship- outline efforts to safeguard consumer rights and interests

Corporate Social Responsibility / Community Engagements

The organisation gives details of CSR activities carried out in the year and the

impacl to the sociely. Give evidence of community engagement including
charitable giving (cash and material), Corporate Social Investment and other

forms of community engagemenls.

4

5
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11. Report ofThe Trustees

The Trustees submit their report together with the unaudited financial statements for the year

ended June 30,2023 which show the state ofthe Fund affairs.

Principal activities

The principal activity/mission/ mandate of the Fund is to be issuing affordable loans to staff and

members of the County Assembly of Mombasa and to recover the same vide payroll deductions to
ensure the fund is revolving, self-sustaining and that all loans issued are duly recovered beforeend
of the Assembly (five years of representation) or before a member of staff retires.

Results

The results of the Fund for the year ended June 30, 2023 are set out from page I to page 5 and

supported by notes from page l8 onwards.

Trustees

The members of the Board of Trustees and Management Team who served during the year are

shown on pages vii, viii, ix, and x respectively. There were no changes in the Board during the

financial year.

Auditors

The Auditor General is responsible for the statutory audit of the Fund in accordance with Article
229 of the Constitution of Kcnya and the Public Audit Act 2015 to carry out the audit of the
Mombasa County Assembly Car Loan and Mortgage Fund for the year/period ended June 30,
2023.

By Order of the Committee

(

Chair of the Board/Fund A inistration Committee

Date:

xxt
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12. Statement of Management's Responsibilities

Section 167 of the Public Finance Management Act,20l2 requires that, at the end of each financial
year, the Administrator of a County Public Fund established by Mombasa County Assembly Car

Loan and Mortgage Fund regulations enacted and published under Kenya Gazette Supplement
N0.2 of 27h March 2018 shall prepare financial statements for the Fund in accordance with the
standards and formats prescribed by the Public Sector Accounting Standards Board.

The Administrator of the County Public Fund is responsible for the preparation and presentation of
the Fund's financial statements, which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Fund for
and as at the end ofthe financial year ended on June 30,2023. This responsibility includes: (i)
maintaining adequate financial management arrangements and ensuring that these continue to be

effective throughout the reporting period; (ii) maintaining proper accounting records, which disclose

with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Fund; (iii) designing, implementing
and maintaining intemal controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements, and ensuring that they are free from material misstatements, whether due to error or
fraud; (iv) safeguarding the assets ofthe Fund; (v) selecting and applying appropriate accounting
policies; and (vi) making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

The Administrator of the County Public Fund accepts responsibility for the Fund's financial
statements, which have been prepared using appropriate accounting policies supported by
reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates, in conformity with Intemational Public Sector

Accounting Standards (IPSAS), and in the manner required by the PFM Act,20l2 and County
Assembly of Mombasa Regulations 20 I 8. The Administrator of the Fwrd is of the opinion that the

Fund's financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of Fund's transactions during the

financial year ended June 30, 2023, arrd of the Fund's financial position as at that date. The

Administrator ftrther confirm the completeness of the accounting records maintained for the Fund,

which have been relied upon in the preparation of the Fund's financial statements as well as the

adequacy ofthe systems of intemal financial control.

In preparing the financial statements, nothing has come to the attention of the Administrator to

indicate that the Fund will not remain a going concem for at least the next twelve months from the

date of this statement.

Approval of the financial statements

The Fund's financial statements were approved by the Board on266 September 2023 and signed on
is behalf by:

Administrator of the C nty Public Fund

xxlt



REPUBLIC OF KENYA

OFFICE OF THE AUOITOR.GENERAL

E n ha nc i n g A c c o u nta b i I i t1,

HEADqUARTERS

Anniversary Towers
Monrovia Street

P.O. Box 3oo84-ooroo
NAIROBI

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR.GENERAL ON MOMBASA COUNTY ASSEMBLY CAR
LOAN AND MORTGAGE FUND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE,2023

PREAMBLE

I draw your attention to the contents of my report which is in three parts:

A. Report on the Financial Statements that considers whether the financial statements
are fairly presented in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework,
accounting standards and the relevant laws and regulations that have a direct effect
on the financial statements;

B. Report on LaMulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources which considers
compliance with applicable laws, regulations, policies, gazette notices, circulars,
guidelines and manuals and whether public resources are applied in a prudent,
efficient, economic, transparent and accountable manner to ensure the Government
achieves value for money and that such funds are applied for the intended purpose.

C. Report on the Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and Governance
which considers how the entity has instituted checks and balances to guide internal
operations. This responds to the effectiveness of the governance structure, risk
management environment and internal controls, developed and implemented by those
charged with governance for orderly, efficient and effective operations of the entity.

An unmodified opinion does not necessarily mean that an entity has complied with all
relevant laws and regulations and that its internal controls, risk management and
governance systems are properly designed and were working effectively in the financial
year under review.

The three parts of the report are aimed at addressing the statutory roles and
responsibilities of the Auditor-General as provided by Article 229 of the Constitution, the
Public Finance Management 4ct,2012 and the Public Audit Act, 2015. The three parts of
the report when read together constitute the report of the Auditor-General.

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Qualified Opinion

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of Mombasa County Assembly Car
Loan and Mortgage Fund set out on pages 1 to 40, which comprise the statement of
financial position as at 30 June, 2023, the statement of financial performance, statement

Repnrt of the Auditor-General on Mombasa County Assembly Car Loan and Mortgage Fund for the year ended
30 June, 2023
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of changes in net assets, statement of cash flows and statement of comparison of budget
and actual amounts for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information in accordance with the provisions of Article 229
of the Constitution of Kenya and Section 35 of the Public Audit Act, 2015. I have obtained
all the information and explanations which to the best of my knowledge and belief, were
necessary for the purpose of the audit.

ln my opinion, except for the effect of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion section of my report, the financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Mombasa County Assembly Car Loan and Mortgage
Fund as at 30 June, 2023 and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year
then ended, in accordance with lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards
(Accrual Basis) and comply with the Public Finance Management (Mombasa County
Assembly Members and Staff Car Loan and Mortgage Fund) Regulations, 2018 and the
Public Finance Management Act, 2012.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

1. Presentation Anomalies and lnaccuracies in Financial Statements

Review of the financial statements presented for audit revealed the following presentation
anomalies and inaccuracies;

The statement of financial performance reflects transfers from the County Assembly
of Kshs.121,000,000. However, only Kshs.117,370,000 or 97o/o relate to capital fund.
The balance of Kshs.3,630,000 or 3% relate to administration expenses which should
have been recognized in the statement of financial performance as revenue and not
the total amount.

a

The statement of changes in Net Assets reflects a revaluation reserye of negative
KShs.81,883,418, whose nature and purpose was not explained in a note to the
financial statements as required by the Public Sector Accounting Standards Boards
reporting guidelines and template.

Notes 11 lo 24 to the financial statements as indicated on the face of the statement
of financial position are inconsistent with the disclosure in the respective notes.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy of the financial statements for the year under review
could not be confirmed.

2. Receivables from Exchange Transactions

The statement of financial position reflects Kshs.107,862,823 and Kshs.7,384,277 in
respect of long-term receivables and other receivable County Treasury respectively.
However, the corresponding Note 13 reflects Kshs.101 ,425,456 and Kshs.6,437,366
resulting in variances of Kshs.6,437,367 and Kshs.946,911. The variances were not
explained or reconciled.

Report of the Auditor-General on Mombasa County Assembly Car Loan and Mortgage Fund for the year ended
30 June, 2023
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ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of the long term receivables and
other receivable from County Treasury could not be confirmed.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of the receivables from exchange
transactions could not be confirmed.

The audit was conducted in accordance with the lnternational Standards for Supreme
Audit lnstitutions (lSSA|s). I am independent of the Mombasa County Assembly Car Loan
and Mortgage Fund Management in accordance with ISSAI 130 on the Code of Ethics. I

have fulfilled other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the ISSAI and in accordance
with other ethical requirements applicable to performing audits of financial statements in
Kenya. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for my qualified opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

Budgetary Gontrol and Performance

The statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts reflects final revenue budget
and actual amounts on comparable basis of Kshs.205,277,325 and Kshs.122,169,302
respectively, resulting in underfunding of Kshs.83,108,022 or 40o/o of the budget.
Similarly, the Fund expended Kshs.121,566,587 against an approved budget of
Kshs.210,496,820, resulting under absorption of Kshs.88,930,233 or 42o/o of the budget.

ln the circumstances, the underfunding and under absorption of funds impacted
negatively on the implementation of the Fund's programs.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgement, are of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements. There were no key audit matters to
report in the year under review.

Other Matter

Unresolved Prior Year Audit lssues

During the audit of the prior year, several matters were raised on financial statements and
on lawfulness and effectiveness in use of public resources. However, the matters
remained unresolved as at 30 June,2023. Management did not give explanations for the
delays in resolving the issues. Further, although some of the issues were indicated as
resolved, there was no evidence to show that they had been discussed and determined
by the relevant oversight body.

REPORT ON LAWFULNESS AND EFFECTIVENESS IN USE OF PUBLIC
RESOURCES

Conclusion

As required by Article 229(6) of the Constitution and based on the audit procedures
performed, except for the matter described in the Basis for Conclusion on Lavvfulness and

Report of the Auditor-General on Mombasa County Assembly Car Loan and Mortgage Fund for the year ended

30 June, 2023
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Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources section of my report, I confirm that, nothing else
has come to my attention to cause me to believe that public resources have not been
applied lavufully and in an effective way.

Basis for Conclusion

Long-Term Receivables

The statement of financial position reflects receivables from exchange transactions of
Kshs.132,711,486. As disclosed in Note 13 to the financial statements, the amount
includes Kshs.6,437,366 in respect of other exchange debtors, which was owed by four
(4) former Members of the County Assembly (MCAs) who served between 2013-2018
and had defaulted on their payments. Review of the supporting schedules provided for
audit revealed an outstanding amount Kshs.3,767,133 owed by two MCAs who were
deceased, while Kshs.959,720 was by a member whose contract ended on
8 August, 2017. Further, a demand notice the member's current employer failed to include
interest charge in line with provisions of Paragraph 2 (7) of the Salaries and Remuneration
Commission circular dated 17 December, 2014 which provides that where state officer or
public officer leaves public service employment for whatever reason other than
disciplinary grounds, the terms of the loan remain in force and does not change for the
life time of the loan unless in cases of default in which it reverts to commercial terms.

Further, there was no evidence provided to indicate efforts made by Management to write
off amounts of Kshs.3,767,133 owed by deceased members, which had been outstanding
for more than five years. ln addition, one of the deceased member's loan balance of
Kshs.1,385,623 had been insured. However, as at the time of audit, on October, 2023,
the insurer had only paid Kshs.1 ,059,902, leaving an outstanding balance of
Kshs.325,721. The under compensation by the insurer was not explained and there was
no evidence that Management was pursuing the matter.

ln the circumstances, the recoverability of debtors balance of Kshs.6,437,366 was
doubtful.

The audit was conducted in accordance with the lnternational Standards for Supreme
Audit lnstitutions (lSSAl) 4000. The Standard requires that I comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about whether the
activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements
comply, in all material respects, with the authorities that govern them. I believe that the
audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
conclusion.

REPORT ON THE EFFECTIVENESS OF
MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE

INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK

Conclusion

As required by Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and based on the audit
procedures performed, except for the matter described in the Basis for Conclusion on

Report of the Auditor-Ceneral on Mombasa County Assembly Car Loan and Mortgage Fund for the year ended
30 June, 2023
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Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and Governance section of my
report, I confirm that, nothing has come to my attention to cause me to believe that internal
controls, risk management and governance were not effective:

Weak !nterna! Controls

Note 32 to the financial statements reflects principal loan payments balance of
Kshs.110,302,600. Analysis of the payment vouchers and review of sampled loans
amounting to Kshs.73,738,800 advanced to seventeen (17) borrowers revealed the
following control weaknesses in the issuance and management of the loans;

Loan application forms lacked key information such as application date, the nature of
the loan, applicant financial appraisal, Fund Administrator's recommendation, forms
serialization and authentication stamp.

Loans amounting to Kshs.47,390,800 were approved without the County Government
authorities approvals of designs for proposed residential properties while loans
amounting to Kshs.13,500,000 were advanced to borrowers who had no proof of land
ownership attached as security for the mortgage.'

Examination of payment vouchers under disbursement of car loans and mortgages
revealed thatout of total disbursements of Kshs.110,302,600, Kshs.100,890,400
loans were disbursed directly to either the accounts of the borrowers or their personal
loan accounts instead of the respective dealers, developers or lenders of car loan and
mortgage facilities.

Loans amounting to Kshs.25,393,162 were used to buy off individual loan balances
without proof that the loans related to the purchase of car or mortgage property.

Note 29 to the financial statements reflects the principal loan payments of
Kshs.110,302,600. However, the titles deeds and car logbooks were not provided to
evidence that the loans were secured by registered charges or encumbrances
attached to the property to restrict any sale or transfer till the payment is complete or
co-ownership of the cars purchased.

the circumstances, the eligibility and recoverability of the disbursed loans of
hs.1 10,302,600 was doubtful.

he audit was conducted in accordance with the lnternational Standards for Supreme
udit lnstitutions (lSSAls)2315 and 2330. The Standards require that I plan and perform

t e audit to obtain assurance about whether effective processes and systems of internal
c ntrols, risk management and overall governance were operating effectively, in all

aterial respects. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and
a propriate to provide a basis for my conclusion

ponsibilities of Management and Board of Trustees

nagement is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
st tements in accordance with lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual

sis) and for maintaining effective internal controls as Management determines is

Re
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necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and for its assessment of the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and overall governance.

ln preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the
Fund's, ability to continue to sustain services, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to the sustainability of services and using the applicable basis of accounting unless
Management is aware of the intention to terminate the Fund or to cease operations.

Management is also responsible for the submission of the financial statements to the
Auditor-General in accordance with the provisions of Section 47 of the Public Audit Act,
2015.

ln addition to the responsibilrty for the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements described above, Management is also responsible for ensuring that the
activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements
comply with the authorities which govern them and that public resources are applied in
an effective way.

The Board of Trustees is responsible for overseeing the Fund's financial reporting
process, reviewing the effectiveness of how Management monitors compliance with
relevant legislative and regulatory requirements, ensuring that effective processes and
systems are in place to address key roles and responsibilities in relation to governance
and risk management, and ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of the control
environment.

Auditor-General's Responsibilities for the Audit

The audit objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes my opinion in accordance with the provisions
of Section 48 of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit the audit report in compliance with
Article 229(7) of the Constitution. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls will always detect
a material misstatement and weakness when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

ln addition to the audit of the financial statements, a compliance audit is planned and
performed to express a conclusion about whether, in all material respects, the activities,
financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are in
compliance with the authorities that govern them and that public resources are applied in
an effective way, in accordance with the provisions of Article 229(6) of the Constitution
and submit the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution.

Further, in planning and performing the audit of the financial statements and audit of
compliance, I consider internal control in order to give an assurance on the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and governance processes and systems in

Report of the Auditor-Generol on Mombasa County Assembly Car Loan and Mortgage Fund for the year ended
30 June, 2023
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I

accordance with the provisions of Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit
the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution. My consideration of
the internal control would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control that
might be material weaknesses under the lSSAls. A material weakness is a condition in
which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not
reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud in
amounts that would be material in relation to the frnancial statements being audited may
occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control may not prevent or detect
misstatements and instances of non-compliance. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies and procedures may deteriorate.

ud
part of an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls, I exercise professional

gement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. I also:

ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management's use of the applicable basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Fund's
ability to continue to sustain its services. lf I conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
I am required to draw attention in the auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my audit
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Fund to cease to continue
to sustain its services.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information and
business activities of the Fund to express an opinion on the financial statements.

Perform such other procedures as I consider necessary in the circumstances.

R rt of the Auditor-General on Mombasa County Assembly Car Loan and Mortgage Fund for the year ended
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I communicate with the Management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal controlthat are identified during the audit.

I also provide Management with a statement that I have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

FCPA ancy a BS
AUDITOR.GENERAL

Nairobi

03 January, 2024

Report of the Auditor-General on Mombasa County Assembly Car Loan and Mortgage Fund for the year ended
30 June, 2023
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. Statement of Financial Performance for the Year Ended 30th June 2023

e notes set out on pages l8 onwards form an in part these Financial Statements

me: Salim Juma Mwa Name: PauI Mulila
inistrator of the Fu Fund Accountant

ICPAK Member N0:5971

KShs KShs

Revenue from non-exchange transactions
Public contributions and donations 1

2
121,000,000 30,000,000

Iransfers from the County Assembly of
Mombasa

Jiines, penalties and other levies

l levenue fro m exchange transactions

2,188,431I nterest income 4
r.169,302

()ther income

32,188,431lotal revenuc
122,169,302

I)xpenses

6t)mployee Costs

4,045,543
7

2,863,987I se ofgoods and services

8t lepreciation and Amortization Expense

9F inance Costs

r 9,400,000ar grant disbursements paid out 27
8,400,000C

23,445,54311,263,987
Total Expenses

tther gains/lossesC

10G ain/loss on disposal ofassets

8,742,888110,905,315S ,rrplus/( deficit) for the period

FY2022t2023 FY202U2022I Note

5
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Mombasa County Assembly Car Loan and Mortgage Fund
Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended June 30, 2023

15. Statement of Financial Position As at 30 June 2023

The accounting policies and explanatory notes

The entity financial statements were

dministr{tor of thc ['und

to these financial statements form

on 3l July 2023 and signed by:

an integral of the fi nancial statements.

Frnd Accountrlrt

Nrmc: Prul Mutungi Mulilr

ICPAK Mcmb€r N0:5971

2

KShs KShs

Assets

Current assets

Cash and cash cquivalcnts 22,735,855 r4,040,53 t

Current ponion oflong term rcceivables from cxchange transactions t2 24,848.664 9,440.t98

Prepaymcnts l3

Inventories t4

Other reccivable from County I'reasury 22d 't,384,2',11 t47.384.277

54.968,796 r 70.865,006

Non-current assets

Long lerm rec.€ivables lionr cxchange transactions t2 t07.862.823 t5,259,517

Propcrly, plant and cquipmcnt t5

Intangible asscts t6

107.862.823 15,259,5'17

'Iotrl assrts 162.831.6r9 r 86,12.1,5E3

Lin hilitics

Current liabilitirs

Trade and other payables from exchange transaction t1 8,400,000

Provisions t8

Cunent portion of bonowings t9

Employee benef it obligations 20

Non-currrnt lirhililics

Long term portion ofbonowings l9

Non-current enrployce bcnclit obligation 20

'Iotal lirbilitirs 8,{00,000

Revolving Fund 24 t62.831,6t8 38,740,307

Capital Reserves adjustment r2l,498.501

Accumulated surplus F Y 202-2022 11,485.776

Totel net cssrts rnd liabilitics l62.83l,6ltl t86,t24,5EJ

Nrmc: Srlim Juma lllwalimu

Notc Fy2022n023 FY2021t2022



ombasa County Assembly Car Loan and Mortgage Fund
nual Re ort and Financial Statements for the ar ended June 30, 2023

6. Statement Of Changes in Net Assets for the year ended 30th June 2023

ame: Salim Juma Mwal Name: aul Mutungi Mulila
dministrator of the F Fund Accountant

ICPAK Member N0:5971

KShs KShs KShs
Balanr :easatlJu ly 2021 r00,000,000 (ts,027,854) 84,972,146

Surplur /(deficit) for the period 8,742,888 8,742,888

Funds p991ved during the year 30,000,000 30,000,000

Revalu ation gain

Balanc e as at 30 June 2022 130,000,000 (6,284,966\ 123,715,034

Balanc e as at 1 July 2022 130,000,000 (6,284,966) 123,715,034

Cummr dative Surplus/(defi cit) adjustment (81,883,418) (8r,883,4r8)

Funds r ecel ved during the year 121,000,000 121,000,000

IJalanc e as at 30 June 2023 251,000,000 (81,883,418) (6284,966) 162,831,616

3

l Revolving
Fund

Rcvaluation
. Reserve

Accumulated
surplus

Total
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17. Statement of Cash Flows for The Year Ended 30 June 2023

KShsKShs

Cash flows from operating activities

Rcceipts

Pubtic contributions and donations

121,000,0002
Transfers from the County Covemment(CoB)

2,188,43 II , 169,3024
lnterest received

5
Receipts from other operating activities

32,188,431122,169,302Total Receipts

Payments
7

Fund administration expenses

4,045,5432,863,98'77Ceneral expenses
9

Finance Costs

4,045,5,132,863,987Total Payments

28, t 42,888l 19,305,31 sNet cash flows from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, p lant, equipment and intangible assets

Proceeds from sale ofproperty, plant and equipment

11,295,2548,092,60829
Proceeds from loan principal repayments

(18,000,000)28

(19,400,000)(8,400,000)11
Car grant disbursements paid out

(26,101,746)(t 10,609,99t)Net cash flows used in investing activities

Additional borrowings
(6,471,867)32

Repayment of bonowings(SBM Bank Debt)

(6,411,861)Net cash flows used in financing activities

(4,433,72s)8,695,32,1Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

18,474,25514,040,53 lCash and cash equivalents at I JULY 2022

t 4,040,53 tCash and cash equivalents at 30 JUNE 2023

Name: Salim Juma Mwalimu

Administrator of the Fund

Name: Paul Mutungi Mulila
Fund

Accountant

ICPAK Member

N0:5971

4

Mombasa County Assembly Car Loan and Mortgage Fund

FY2021t2022FY2022t2023Note

I

30.000,000

(110,302,s99)Loan disbursements paid out

Cash flows from financing activities

.-"'--- 22,73s,8s5n r) -.
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FY2022n023 Fy2022n023 FY2022n023 Fv2022t2023 FY2022t2023 FY2022n023

Reven ue KShs KShs KShs KShs KShs KShs

Public contributions and donations

Transfers from County Assembly 200,000,000 ( 15,000,000) r5,000,000 200,000,000 t2l,000,000 79,000,000 6l
Interest income 5.277.325 5,277,325 1,169,302 4.108.022 22

Olher income

Total income 205,277 )25 ( r s,000,000) t5,000,000 20s,277.325 122,t69)02 83,108,022

Expenses/Payments

Principal Loan
PaymentVDisbursements 206,437,500 ( 1s,000,000) 15,000,000 206,437,500 | 10,302,599 96,134,901

Car Loan/grant
PaymenLVDisbursements 8,400,000 (8.400,000)

Fund administration expenses 1.927.000 r,927,000 1,410,850 5r6.t50 73

Staffcosts

General expenses 2.104.200 2.104.200 1.410.850 693.350 67

Bank & other Charges/Finance Costs 28.120 28.120 42,287 ( 14,168) 150

Total Payments,/expenditure 2t0,496,820 ( 1s,000,000) r s,000,000 210,496,820 12r,566586 88,930,233

Surplus for the period (s,219,49s) (s,2r9,49s) 602,7t6 (s,822,21 I )

18. Statement Of Com rison Of Bu And Actual Amounts For The Period

Budget notcs
l. Prcvide below a comrrpntsry on signilicant underutilizalion (belov Wk olutilizdtion) and any overutilization (IPSAS 24.14)

2. Provide an explanation of clunges ktween original andfrnal budgel indicating wlcther the drference is due lo reallocatiot s or o cr causes. (IPSAS 21.29)

perlonunce is accruol) provide a reconciliation.

5

OriginaL
budget

-fdjustmenil Adj ustm ent2 Final budget Actual on
comparable basis

Pcrformance
difference utilisation
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19. Notes to the Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies

l. General Information

The Mombasa County Assembly Car Loan and Mortgage Fund is established by and derives

its authority and accountability from County Assembly Members & StaffCar Loan Regulations

2018. The Fund is wholly owned by the Mombasa County Govemment and is domiciled in

Kenya.

2. Statement of compliance and basis of preparation

The Fund's financial statements have been prepared in accordance with and comply with

International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS). The financial statements are

presented in Kenya shillings, which is the functional and reporting currency of the Fund. The

accounting policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented. The financial

statements have been prepared on the basis ofhistorical cost, unless stated otherwise. The cash

flow statement is prepared using the direct method. The financial statements are prepared on

accrual basis.

3. Adoption ofnew and revised standards

(i) New and amended standards and interpretations in issue but not yet ffictive in the year

ended 30 June 2023

Applicable: l't January 2023

The objective of IPSAS 4l is to establish principles for the financial

reporting offinancial assets and liabilities that will present relevant

and useful information to users of financial statements for their

assessment of the amounts, timing and uncertainty of an Entity's

future cash flows.

IPSAS 4l provides users of financial statements with more useful

information than IPSAS 29, by:

IPSAS 4l: Financial

Instruments

Standard Effective date and impact

6
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. Applying a single classification and measurement model for

financial assets that considers the characteristics ofthe asset's

cash flows and the objective for which the asset is held;

. Applying a single forward-looking expected credit loss

model that is applicable to all financial instruments subject to

impairment testing; and

. Applying an improved hedge accounting model that

broadens the hedging arrangements in scope ofthe guidance.

The model develops a strong link between an Entity's risk

management strategies and the accounting treatment for

instruments held as part of the risk management strategy.

(State lhe impact of the standard to the Entity if relevant)

IPSAS 42: Social

Benefits

Applicable: l3t January 2023

The objective of this Standard is to improve the relevance, faithful

representativeness and comparability of the information that a

reporting Entity provides in its financial statements about social

benefits. The information provided should help users ofthe financial

statements and general-purpose financial reports assess:

(a) The nature ofsuch social benefits provided by the Entity;

(b) The key features ofthe operation ofthose social benefit schemes;

and

(c) The impact of such social benefits provided on the Entity's

financial performance, financial position and cash flows.

(Slate the impac, of the standard to the Entity if relevont)

Amendments to

Other IPSAS

resulting from IPSAS

F inancial

instruments

1 l,

Applicable: l't January 2023

a) Amendments to IPSAS 5, to update the guidance related to

the components of borrowing costs which were inadvertently

omitted when IPSAS 4l was issued.

b) Amendments to IPSAS 30, regarding illustrative examples on

hedging and credit risk which were inadvertently omifted

when IPSAS 4l was issued.

7

Standard Effective date and impact
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c) Amendments to IPSAS 30, to update the guidance for

accounting for financial guarantee contracts which were

inadvertently omitted when IPSAS 4l was issued.

Amendments to IPSAS 33, to update the guidance on classifring

financial instruments on initial adoption of accrual basis IPSAS

which were inadvertently omitted when IPSAS 4l was issued.

(Stote the impoct of the standard to the Entity if relevant)

Applicable Id January 2023

c IPSAS 22 Disclosure of Financial Information about the General

Government Sector,

Amendments to refer to the latest System ofNational Accounts (SNA

2008).

o IPSAS 39: Employee Benefits

Now deletes the term composite social security benefits as it is no

longer defined in IPSAS.

o IPSAS 29: Financial instruments: Recognition and

Measurement

Standard no longer included in the 2021 IPSAS handbook as it is now

superseded by IPSAS 4l which is applicable from I't January 2023.

Slote the impact of the slandard to the Entity if relevant

Other improvements

to IPSAS

(ii) New and amended standards and interpretatioru in issue but not yet effective in Ihe year

ended 30 June 2023

Applicable ln lanuary 2025

The standard sets out the principles for the recognition,

measurement, presentation, and disclosure of leases. The objective is

to ensure that lessees and lessors provide relevant information in a

manner that faithfully represents those transactions. This information

gives a basis for users offinancial statements to assess the effect that

leases have on the financial position, financial performance and

cashflows of an Entity.

IPSAS 43

8

Standard Effective date and impact

Standard Effective date and impact:
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The new standard requires entities to recognise, measure and present

information on right ofuse assets and lease liabilities.

Slate lhe expecled impacl of lhe standard to lhe Entity if relevant

IPSAS 44: Non-

Current Assets Held

for Sale and

Discontinued

Operations

Applicable F fanuary 2025

The Standard requires,

Assets that meet the criteria to be classified as held for sale to be

measured at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to

sell and the depreciation ofsuch assets to cease and:

Assets that meet the criteria to be classified as held for sale to be

presented separately in the statement of financial position and the

results of discontinued operations to be presented separately in the

statement of fi nancial performance.

Slate lhe expected impacl of the standord lo the Entily if relevant

ii)Early adoption of standards

e Entity did not early - adopt any new or amended standards in the financial year or the entity
d the following standards early (state the standards, reason for early adoption and
on entity's financial statements.)

9

Standard Effective date and impact:
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4. Summary of Signilicant Accounting Policies

a) Revenue recognition

i. Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Transfers from other government entities

Revenues from non-exchange transactions with other government entities are measured at fair
value and recognized on obtaining control ofthe asset (cash, goods, services and property) if
the transfer is free from conditions and it is probable that the economic benefits or service
potential related to the asset will flow to the entity and can be measured reliably.

ii. Revenue from exchange transactions

Interest incom e

Interest income is accrued using the effective yield method. The effective yield discounts
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net
carrying amount. The method applies this yield to the principal outstanding to determine
interest income each period.

Dividends

Dividends or similar distributions must be recognized when the shareholder's or the Entity's
right to receive payments is established.

Rental income

Rental income arising from operating leases on investment properties is accounted for on a
straight-line basis over the lease terms and included in revenue.

b) Budget information

The original budget for FY 2022123 was approved by the County Assembly on Mombasa on
28n June 2022. Subsequent revisions or additional appropriations were made to the approved
budget in accordance with specific approvals from the appropriate authorities. The additional
appropriations are added to the original budget by the entity upon receiving the respective
approvals in order to conclude the final budget. Accordingly, the Fund did not record additional
appropriations on the FY 2022123 budget.

The entity's budget is prepared on a diflerent basis to the actual income and expenditure
disclosed in the financial statements. The financial statements are prepared on accrual basis
using a classification based on the nature ofexpenses in the statement offinancial performance,
whereas the budget is prepared on a cash basis. The amounts in the financial statements were
recast from the accrual basis to the cash basis and reclassified by presentation to be on the same
basis as the approved budget. A comparison of budget and actual amounts, prepared on a
comparable basis to the approved budget, is then presented in the statement of comparison of
budget and actual amounts.

l0



., Mombasa Counfy Assembly Car Loan and Mortgage Fund
Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended June 30,2023

Summary of Signilicant Accounting Policies (Continued)

ln addition to the Basis difference, adjustments to amounts in the financial statements are also
made for differences in the formats and classification schemes adopted for the presentation of
the financial statements and the approved budget.

A statement to reconcile the actual amounts on a comparable basis included in the statement of
comparison of budget and actual amounts and the actuals as per the statement of financial
performance has been presented under section I 8 ofthese financial statements.

c) Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of
the items. When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced
at intervals, the entity recognizes such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and
depreciates them accordingly. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is
recognized in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the
recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in
surplus or deficit as incurred. Where an asset is acquired in a non-exchange transaction for nil
or nominal consideration the asset is initially measured at its fair value.

d) Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially recognized at cost. The cost of intangible
assets acquired in a non-exchange transaction is their fair value at the date of the exchange.

'Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated
amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Intemally generated intangible assets,

excluding capitalized development costs, are not capitalized and expenditure is reflected in
surplus or deficit in the period in which the expenditure is incuned.

The useful life ofthe intangible assets is assessed as either finite or indefinite

e) Investment property

Jnvestment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. The carrying
f,mount includes the replacement cost of components of an existing investment property at the

time that cost is incurred if the recognition criteria are met and excludes the costs of day-to-

day maintenance of an investment properfy. Investment property acquired through a non-

exchange transaction is measured at its fair value at the date ofacquisition. Subsequent to initial
iecognition, investmenl properties are measured using lhe cost model and are deprecialed over
an xx-year period or inveslment property is measured at fair value with gains and losses

rrecognised through surplus or deficit.(entity to amend appropriately) Investment properties

are derecognized either when they have been disposed ofor when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit or service potential is
expected from its disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
ahnount ofthe asset is recognized in the surplus or deficit in the period ofde-recognition.

n
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

f) Financial instruments

IpSAS 4l addresses the classification, measurement and de-recognition of financial assets and

financial liabilities, introduces new rules for hedge accounting and a new impairment model

for financial assets. Tfte entity does not hove any hedge relationships and therefore the new

hedge accounting rules have no impact on the Company's financial statements. (amend as

appropriate). A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one

entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. At initial recognition, the

entity measures a financial asset or financial liability at its fair value plus or minus, in the case

ofa financial asset or financial liability not at fair value through surplus or deficit, transaction

costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue ofthe financial asset or financial

liability.

Financial assets

Classification of financial assets

The entity classifies its financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value

through net assets/ equity or fair value through surplus and deficit on the basis of both the

entity's management model for financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of

the financial asset. A financial asset is measured at amortized cost when the financial asset is

held within a management model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect

contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified

dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal

outstanding. A financial asset is measured at fair value through net assets/ equity if it is held

within the management model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual

cashflows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise

on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the

principal amount outstanding. A financial asset shall be measured at fair value through surplus

or deficit unless it is measured at amortized cost or fair value through net assets/ equity unless

an entity has made irrevocable election at initial recognition for particular investments in equity

instruments.

Subsequent measurement

Based on the business model and the cash flow characteristics, the entity classifies its financial

assets into amortized cost or fair value categories for financial instruments. Movements in fair

value are presented in either surplus or deficit or through net assets/ equity subject to certain

criteria being met.

t2
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Summary of Signilicant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Amortized cost

Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest, and that are not designated at fair value

through surplus or deficit, are measured at amortized cost. A gain or loss on an instrument that

is subsequently measured at amortized cost and is not part of a hedging relationship is

recognized in profit or loss when the asset is de-recognized or impaired. Interest income from
these financial assets is included in finance income using the effective interest rate method.

Fair value through net assets/ equity

Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the

financial assets, where the assets' cash flows represent solely payments of principal and

interest, are measured at fair value through net assets/ equity. Movements in the carrying

amount are taken through net assets, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses,

interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognized in surpluVdeficit.

Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance income using the effective

interest rate method.

Fair value through surplus or deficit

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for amortized cost or fair value through net assets/

equity are measured at fair value through surplus or deficit. A business model where the entity

manages financial assets with the objective of realizing cash flows through solely the sale of
the assets would result in a fair value through surplus or deficit model.

iTrade and other receivables
I

lTrade and other receivables are recognized at fair values less allowances for any uncollectible

ia.ounts. Trade and other receivables are assessed for impairment on a continuing basis. An

iestimate is made of doubtful receivables based on a review of all outstanding amounts at the

lear end.

Impairment
I

f.he entity assesses, on a forward-looking basis, the expected credit loss ('ECL') associated

lvith its financial assets carried at amortized cost and fair value through net assets/equity. The

Sntity recognizes a loss allowance for such losses at each reporting date. Critical estimates and

{ignificant 
judgments made by management in determining the expected credit loss (ECL) are

iet out in Note xx.

l3
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial Iiabilities

Classification

The entity classifies its liabilities as subsequently measured at amortized cost except for

financial liabilities measured through profit or loss.

g) lnventories

Inventory is measured at cost upon initial recognition. To the extent that inventory was received

through non-exchange transactions (for no cost or for a nominal cost), the cost ofthe inventory

is its fair value at the date of acquisition.

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and conditions are accounted for,

as follows:

) Raw materials: purchase cost using the weighted average cost method

) Finished goods and work in progress: cost ofdirect materials and labour and a proportion

of manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity, but excluding
borrowing costs

After initial recognition, inventory is measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value.

However, to the extent that a class of inventory is distributed or deployed at no charge or for a
nominal charge, that class of inventory is measured at the lower of cost and current replacement

cost.Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course ofoperations, less

the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale, exchange,

or distribution. Inventories are recognized as an expense when deployed for utilization or
consumption in the ordinary course of operations of the Entity.

h) Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Entity has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a

result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow ofresources embodying economic benefits
or service potential will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made

of the amount of the obligation. Where the Entity expects some or all of a provision to be

reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognized as a

separate asset only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to any

provision is presented in the statement of financial performance net of any reimbursement.

i) Social Benefits

Social benefits are cash transfers provided to i) specific individuals and / or households that

meet the eligibility criteria, ii) mitigate the effects of social risks and iii) Address the need of
society as a whole. The entity recognises a social benefit as an expense for the social benefit

scheme at the same time that it recognises a liability. The liability for the social benefit scheme

is measured at the best estimate of the cost (the social benefit payments) that the entity will
incur in fulfilling the present obligations represented by the liability.

t4
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

I j) Contingent liabilities

The Entity does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses details ofany contingencies
in the notes to the financial statements, unless the possibility of an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits or service potential is remote.

Contingent assets

The Entity does not recognize a contingent asset, but discloses details ofa possible asset whose
existence is contingent on the occurrence or non-occurrence ofone or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Entity in the notes to the financial statements.
Contingent assets are assessed continually to ensure that developments are appropriately
reflected in the financial statements. If it has become virtually certain that an inflow of
economic benefits or service potential will arise and the asset's value can be measured reliably,
the asset and the related revenue are recognized in the financial statements of the period in
which the change occurs.

k) Nature and purpose of reserves

The Entity creates and maintains reserves in terms of specific requirements. Entily to state the
reserves maintained and appropriate policies adopted.

l) Changes in accounting policies and estimates

The Entity recognizes the effects ofchanges in accounting policy retrospectively. The effects
of changes in accounting policy are applied prospectively if retrospective application is
impractical.

m) Employee benefits - Retirement benelit plans

The Entity provides retirement benefits for its employees and directors. Defined contribution
plans are post-employment benefit plans under which an entity pays fixed contributions into a

separate entity (a fund) and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further
contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits relating to
employee service in the current and prior periods. The contributions to fund obligations for the
payment of retirement benefits are charged against income in the year in which they become
payable.

Defined benefit plans are post-employment benefit plans other than defined-contribution plans.
The defined benefit funds are actuarially valued tri-annually on the projected unit credit method
basis. Deficits identified are recovered through lump sum payments or increased future
contributions on proportional basis to all participating employers. The contributions and lump
sum payments reduce the post-employment benefit obligation.

15
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

n) Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially accounted for at the ruling rate of exchange on

the date of the transiction. Trade creditors or debtors denominated in foreign currency are

reported at the statement offinancial position reporting date by applying the-exchange rate on

that date. Exchange differences arising from the settlement of creditors, or from the reporting

of creditors at ratei different from those at which they were initially recorded during the period,

are recognized as income or expenses in the period in which they arise'

o) Borrowing costs

Bonowing costs are capitalized against qualifiing assets as part of gropgrty, plant ard

equipmeni. Such borrowing costs are capitalized over the period during which the asset is being

acquired or constructed ind borrowings have been incurred. Capitalization ceases when

construction of the asset is complete. Further borrowing costs are charged to the statement of
financial performance.

p) Related parties

The Entity regards a related party as a person or an entity with the ability to exert control

individuaily oi lointly, or to exercise significant influence over the Entity, or vice versa.

Members of k.y ,unug.ment are regarded as related parties and comprise the directors, the

CEO and senior managers.

O Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and cash at bank, short-term deposits on call

and highly liquii investments with an original maturity of three months or less, which are

readil/convertible to known amounts of cash and are subject to insignificant risk of changes

in value. Bank account balances include amounts held at the Central Bank of Kenya and at

various commercial banks at the end of the financial year. For the purposes ofthese financial

statements, cash and cash equivatents also include short term cash imprests and advances to

authorised public oflicers and./or institutions which were not surrendered or accounted for at

the end ofthe financial year.

r) Comparative figures

Where necessary comparative figures for the previous financial year have been amended or

reconfigured to conform to the required changes in presentation.

Assembly Car Loan and Mortgage
d Financial Statements for the year

Fund
ended June 30,2023
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

5. Signilicant judgments and sources of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of the Entity's financial statements in conformity with IPSAS requires
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the
end of the reporting period. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or
liability affected in future periods.

State all judgements, estimates and assumptions made e.g.

1a) Estimates and assumptions -
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at

,the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
iamounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Entity
,based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the consolidated financial
statements were prepared. However, existing circumstances and assumptions about future
flevelopments may change due to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control
ofthe Entity. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur. IPSAS 1.140.

b) Useful lives and residual values

fhe useful lives and residual values of assets are assessed using the following indicators to
inform potential future use and value from disposal:

The condition ofthe asset based on the assessment ofexperts employed by the Entity

The nature ofthe asset, its susceptibility and adaptability to changes in technology and
processes

The nature ofthe processes in which the asset is deployed

Availability of funding to replace the asset

Changes in the market in relation to the asset

I

t
t
t

Provisionsc)

Plovisions were raised and management determined an estimate based on the information
atailable. Additional disclosure of these estimates of provisions is included in Note xxx.

i

Ptovisions are measured at the management's best estimate ofthe expenditure required to settle
ttle obligation at the reporting date and are discounted to present value where the effect is
mpterial.

I

(Ihclude provisions applicable for your organisation e.g provision for bad debts, provisions of
o\solete stoclrs and how management estimates these provisions)

t7



Mombasa County Assembly Car Loan and Mortgage Fund
Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended June 30, 2023

6. Notes To The Financial Statements Continued

1. Public contributions and donations

2. Transfers from County Government

3. Fines, penalties and other levies

4. Interest income

(Provide brief explanation for this revenue)

(Ihis is interest charged on mortgages and car loans for the stated periods)

KShs KShs

Donation from development partners

Contributions from the public
Total

KShs KShs

Transfers from County Assembly of Mombasa

Payments By County On Behalf Of The Entity

Transfers from County Assembly of Mombasa-Grant r 2 r,000,000 30,000,000

Total 121,000,000 30,000,000

KShs KShs

Late payment penalties

Fines

Total

KShs KShs

Interest income lrom mortgage loans & car loans 1,169,302 2,047,025

Intercst income fiom Investments

lntcrest incomc on bank deposits 141,406

Total inlerest income I,r69r02 2,t88,431

r8

DescriDtion 2022t2023 202y2022

Description 2022t2023 202y2022
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Notes to the Financial Statements Continued

5. Other income

6. Employee Costs

Use of Goods and Services

KShs KShs

Ccne ral OIfice Expenses

Loan Processing Costs

Prol'e ssional Services Costs

Adm i nistration Fecs

Comr 2,821,700 4,021,300rittee Allorvances

Bank Chargcs 40,730 I 1,E90

Elcctr icity And Water Expenses

Fuel I ind Oil Coss

Insura Costs

And CourierPo

And StationeryPrin

Rcn Costs

Sccuri Costs

'felept one And Communication Expenses

IPPI) ( )harges I,557 10,503

Audit I 'ees

Provisi on For Doubtful Debts

Other (Excise Tax) 1,850

Total 2,863,987 4,045543

KShs KShs
Insurance recoveries

Income from sale oftender documents

Miscellaneous income

Total other income

Salaries And Wages

Staff Gratuitv

StaffTraining Expenses

Social Security Contribution
Other (Specify)

Total

l9
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Notes to the Financial Statements Continued

8. Depreciation and Amortization Expense

9. Finance costs

10. Gain/(loss) on disposal of assets

11. Gain/ (loss) on Fair Value Investments

12. Cash and cash equivalents

KShs KShs

Property Plant and Equipment

Intangible Assets

Total

KShs KShs

Interest on bank overdrafts

Interest on Loans from banks

Total

KShs KShs

Property, plant and equipment

Intangible assets

Total

Investments at Fair Value- Equity investments

Fair value - Investment property

Fair value- other financial assets (specifo)

Total Gain

KShs KShs

Current account 20,335,t69 I 1,639,845

2,400,686 2,400,686Others-KDIC

Total cash and cash equivalents 22,735,855 14,040,531

20

Description 2022t2023 202y2022

Description 2022t2023 202y2022

Description 2022t2023 202y2022

Description
2022t23 202U22

Kshs Kshs

Dcscription 202212023 202112022
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Notes to the Financial Statements Continued

Detailed analysis of the cash and cash equivalents are as follows:

13. Receivables from exchange transactions

itional disclosure on interest receivable

Interest receivable

Interest receivable from current portion of long-term loans of
previous years

Accrued interest receivable from of long-term loans of
previous years

Interest receivable from current portion oflong-term loans
issued in the current year

Current loan repayments due

Current portion oflong-term loans from previous years

Accrued principal from long-terms loans from previous
periods
Current portion of long-term loans issued in the current year

Fina ncial institution Account number KShs KShs

SI lM Bank KDIC 2,400,686 2,400,686

SI lM Bank Current Account 0358099329001 185,636 1,845,896

Cr 20,149,533 9,793,949rlf Bank Current Account 0s20000401

Sr b- totrl 22,735,855 14,040,531

Gr?nd total 22,735,855 14,040,531

KShsKShs

Cu rr ent Receivables

Intere st receivable

24,848,664 3,002,832Curre nt loan repayments due

6,437,366Other exchange debtors 6,437,366

Less: lmpairment allowance

3l,286,031 9,440,198Total Current receivables

Non )urrent receivables

3,002,832101,42s,456Long I erm loan repayments due

6,437366Total 101,425,456Non current receivables

132,711,486 12,443,030Total receivables from exchange transactions

2l

2022t2023 2021t2022

202il2022Dcsc 'iption 2022t2023

Description 202212023 202U2022
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Annual ort and Financial Statements for the year ended June 30, 2023

Notes to the Financial Statements Continued

14. Prepayments

15. Inventories

16. Investments in financial assets

KShsKShs

aid rent

id insurance

costsd electrici

Other prepayments(speciff)

Total

KShsKShs

Consumable stores

Spare parts and meters

Catering

Other inventories(specifo )
Total inventories at the lower of cost and net
realizable value

a. Investment in Treasury bills and bonds

Financial institution
CBK
CBK
Sub- total
b. Investment with Financial Institutions/ Banks

Bank x
Bank y
Sub- total

EquiW investments (specify)c.

Equity/ shares in Entity xxx
Sub- total
Grand total

22

Description 202212023 202y2022

Description 2022t2023 202u2022

Description
2022123 2022t23

Kshs Kshs



Mombasa County Assembly Car Loan and Mortgage Fund
Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended June 30, 2023

/o /o Kshs Kshs Kshs
Entity A
Entity B

Entity C

Notes to the Financial Statements Continued

Movement of Equity Investments

e) Shareholding in other entities
For investments in equity share listed above, list down the equity investmenls under the

following categories:

At the beginning ofthe year

Purchase of investments in the year

C)Sale of investments during the year C)
Gain(loss) in fair value of investments through surplus or
deficit
At the end of the year

23

Impairment allowance/ provision 2022t23 2022t23

Kshs Kshs

Nominal
value of
shares

Fair value
of shares

Fair
value of
sharesNo of shares

Name of Entity
where
investment is

held Direct
sharcholdins 2022t23 2022t23

Indircct
shareholdins

Effective
shareholdins
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Notes To The Financial Statements (Continued)

17. Property, plant and equipment

At l't July 2019

Additions

Disposals

Transfers/adj ustments

At 30th June 2020

At l't July 2020

Additions

Disposals

Transfer/adjustments

At 30th June 2019

Depreciation and impairment

At lst July 2019

Depreciation

Im pairment

At 30th June 2020-

24

Land and
Motor vehicles Furniture and fittings

Com puters and
Total

Buildings ollice eq uipment

Cost KShs KShs KShs KShs KShs

At l't July 2020



Mombasa County Assembly Car Loan and Mortgage Fund
ne

ciation

Disposals

Impairment

Transfer/adjustment

At 30th June 2021

Net book values

At 30th June 2020

At 30th June 2021

25



Mombasa County Assembly Car Loan and Mortgage Fund

Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended June 30, 2023

Notes To The Financial Statements (Continued)

18. Intangible assets

19. Investment ProPerfY

KShsKShs

Cost

nntnArb of the ear

Additions

At end ofthe year

Amortization and im rmcnt

of theAt n nln
Amortization

At end ofthe car
ent lossIm

At end ofthe year

NBV

of the rnrnt

dditions

C)G)the arsal

G)G)on

()G)m

loss in fair value if fair value is elected

At end of the year

26

2022t2023 202y2022

Description
2022t2023 202112022

Kshs Kshs
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Notes To The Financial Statements (Continued)

20. Trade and other payables from exchange transactions

21. Provisions

Trade Pavables

Refundable De sits

Accrued Ex SCS

lesOther 8,400,000
Total Trade and Other Pa bles 8,400,000

Ageing analysis (Trade and other
payables) 2022123

oh oI the
Total 202U22

o of the
Total

Under one year o/- %

I -2 years o/o o/o

% %

Over 3 years Yo %
Total (tie to above total)

KShs KShs KShs KShs
alance at the beginning of the year
t.07.2020

dditionat Provisions

I vision utilised

hange due to discount and time value for
on

I sfers from non -current provisions

nce at the end of the vear
.06.202t

27

Description 2022t2023 202u2022

Kshs Kshs

2-3 years

Leave
provision

Bonus
provision

Other
provision Total
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Annual RePort and Financial S

Notes To The Financial Statements (Continued)

22. Borrowings

The table below shows the classification of borrowings into extemal and domestic

borrowings:

Thetablebelowshowstheclassificationofborrowingslong-termandcurrent
borrowings

(NB: the totat of this stalement should tie to nole 22 ,ola!s. cuffenl porlion of borrowings are those boftowings

rhar are payable witnin on" y"oriiili ,rrinrriit year. Addition;l disclosures on terms of borrowings' nature

ofborrowings, security and inrer:esi ,*ir-ii""ia t" itclosed). Bonowings should be measured ot amortised cost

as per IPSAS 4 l)

KShsKShs

nl of the riod

durin the ear

s durin the

ents of domestics borrow durin the

Balance at

External borro

Domestic bo

ents of extemal od

od

the

Balance at end of the od

KShsKShs

isation'
Dollar denom inated loan from 'xxx

fromoanIinateddenomundPoIIterS

Euro denominated l66n f166 zzz

Ken a Shill loan from KCB
ankBSaIarcBfromIoanIh tI lnS

hill ankBdatedI IConsofromoanIISK
titu onsstilnento ernmotherfrom

External Borrowin
isation'

isation'

Domestic Borrowi

K

B

Total balance at end ofth e ear

KShsKShs

currentShort term on

term borrow

Total

28
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202112022202212023
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Notes To The Financial Statements (Continued)

23. Employee benelit obligations

24. Social Benefit Liabilities

cial benefit schemes include benefits such as cash transfers for unemployment or elderly in line with
42. They are incurred to mitigate against a certain social risk e.g poverty, age, unemployment
others.

KShsKShs KShs KShs

nt benefit obligationC+.
-current benefi t obl igation

^.+
Total employee benefits obligation

Health social benefit scheme

Unemployment social benefit scheme

Orphaned and vulnerable benefit scheme

Elderly social benefit scheme

Bursary social benefits

Total

Current social benefits

Non- current social benefits

Total (tie to totals above)

29

Other
Provisions

TotalDlscription Defined
benefit plan

Post
em ployment

nredical
benefits

2022t2023 202Lt2022

Kshs
Dcscription

Kshs
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Notes To The Financial Statements (Continued)

25. Cash generated from operations

(The total of this statement should tie to the cash flow section on net cash flows from operating
activities)

KShsKShs

Surplus for the year before tax

Adjusted for:
Depreciation

Arnortisation

Gains/ losses on disposal ofassets

Interest income

Finance cost

Working Capital adjustments

Increase in inventory

Increase in receivables

Increase in payables

Net cash flow from operating activities

30
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KShs KShs
lransfers from related parties'

lransfers to related parties

KShsKShs
t loard of Trustees

F .ey Management Compensation

I 'otal

KShs KShs
D ue from parent Ministry

C 226,384,277 147,384,2'77ummulative Due from County Govemment

D oubtful Receivable from Due from County Treasury (219,000,000)

T Dta I 7,394,277 147 )84,277

KShsKShs
D ile to parent Ministry
D re to County Government

Dr re to Key management personnel

Dr le to County Assembly

Tr rtal

Notes To The Financial Statements (Continued)

26. Related parfy balances

a) Nature of related party relationships

Entities and other parties related to the Fund include those parties who have ability to exercise
control or exercise significant influence over its operating and financial decisions. Related

include management personnel, their associates and close family members. The
e is related to the following entities:

The County Government;
The Parent County Government Ministry;
Key management;
Board ofTrustees; etc.

) Related parfy transactions

man ent remuneration

d Due from related es

e) Due to related arties

3l

2022t2023 202u2022

202u20222022t2023

2022t2023 202u2022

2022t2023 202u2022
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Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended June 30, 2023

Other Disclosures Continued

27. Contingent assets and contingent liabilities

28. REVOLVING FUND MOVEMENT ANALYSIS

29. LOAN STATUS (3RD ASSEMBLY)

30. DIIE FROM COUNTY TREASURY (ANALYSTS)

KShs KShs
Court case against the Fund

Bank guarantees

Total

CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS 22,735,8ss 14,040,53 I

RECEIVABLE From Loan beneficiaries 132,71t,486 24,699,776

Receivable from County Treasury bfwd IST Assembly 7,384,277 7,384,277

TOTAL REVOLVING FUND 162,831,618 46,124,594

PRINCIPAI, LOAN ISSUED FY2022.2023 l10,302,600 29,752,186

LOAN BALANCES BlD I':Y2022.2023 18,262,410

LOAN INTEREST l,8s2,503

LOAN IIEPAYMENTS GUI-TI (9,261,910) (13,342,279)

LOAN BALANCE 3Td ASSEMBLY r r9J03,100 18,262,409

OPENING BALANCE 147,384,277 77,384,277

BUDGET FOR THE YEAR 200,000,000 100,000,000

FUNDS RECEIVED ( l 21 ,000,000) (30,000,000)

Doubtful Receivable from County Treasury (219,000,000)

TOTAL CUMMULATIVE DUE FROM COUNTY
TREASURY 7,394,277 147384,277

32

2022t2023 202u2022

REVOLVING FUND 2022t2023 202U2022

2022n023 2021n022

2022t2023 2021t2022
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Other Disclosures Continued

3I. CAR GRANT TAX LIABILITY DUE CURRENT FINANCIAL YEAR

32. PRINCIPAL LOA}{ PAYMENTS

33. PRINCTPAL LOAN REPAYMENTS

4. ASSETS FY2022-2023

Doubtful Receivable from County Treasury

deR cRaNr rax lreBILI'|Y FOR THI] YEAR 8,400,000 26,400,000

c[n cneNr rnx LrABrLtry pAr D DURING TIIE YEAR (8,400,000) ( l E,000,000)

GRANT TAX LIABILITY DUE CURRENT FINANCIAL YEAR 8,400,000

LOANS DISBURSED l 10,302,600 18,000,000

TOTAL LOANS DISBURSED I t 0,302,600 18,000,000

TOTAL LOAN REPAYMENTS 8,092,608 t3,342,279
NTEREST ACCRUAL 1,t69,302 (2,188,43 r )
TOTAL LOAN REPAYMENTS 9261,9t0 I I,153,849

CASH & CASH 22,735,855 t 4,040,53 I

RECEIVABLE From Loan beneficiaries 132,711,486 24,699,776

Receivable from County Treasury 226,384,277 147,384,277

Doubtful Exchequer Receivable From County
uryTreas

(219,000,000) (2 r 9,000,000)

Surplus Revaluation FY 2021 -2022 76,709,n1

TOTAL FLII\DING TO REVOLVING FTIND 162,831,618 43,833,695

Receivable From County Treasury FY2022-2023
226,384,277

7.384.277
Doubtful Exchequer Receivable from County Treasury (219,000,000)

33

2022t2023 2021n022

"i..

202212023 FY2020t202t

I

2022n023 FY2020t202t

ASSETS FY2O22-23 2022t2023 FY202u2022
EQUIVALENTS

2022-2023 2021t2022

Expected Receivable from County Treasury FY2022-2023



Mombasa County Assembly Car Loan and Mortgage Fund

Annual Report and Financial Statements for the yea r ended June 30, 2023

a) Credit risk

The Fund has exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that a counterparty will be unable to pay

amounts in full when due. Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, and deposits with

banks, as well as trade and other receivables and available-for-sale financial investments.

Muru!.r.nt assesses the credit quality of each customer, taking into account its financial

positi[n, past experience and othei factors. Individual risk limits are set based on intemal or

lxtemal'assessmint in accordance with limits set by the directors. The amounts presented in

the statement of financial position are net of allowances for doubtful receivables, estimated by

the entity's management based on prior experience and their assessment of the cunent

economii environment. The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial

statements representing the entity;s maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account

of the value of any collateral obtained is made up as follows:

Notes To The Financial Statements (Continued)

36. Financial risk management

The Fund's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks including credit and liquidity risks

and effects of changes in foreign currency. The Fund's overall risk management programme

focuses on unprediclability of changes in the business environment and seeks to minimise the

pttential adverse effect oi such risks on its performance by setting acceptable levels of risk.

tle prnd does not hedge any risks and has in place policies to ensure that credit is only

extended to customers with an established credit history.

The Fund's financial risk management objectives and policies are detailed below:

At 30 June 2022

Receivables From Exchange

Transactions

Receivables From Non-Exchange
Transactions

Bank Balances

Total
At 30 June 2021

Receivables From Exchange

Transactions

Receivables From Non-Exchange
Transactions

Bank Balances

Total

I
tir

lrrltEI

34

Description
Total
amount
Kshs

Fully
perform ing
Kshs

Past due
Kshs
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Notes To The Financial Statements (Continued)

The customers under the fully performing category are paying their debts as they continue
trading. The credit risk associated with these receivables is minimal and the allowance for
uncollectible amounts that the entity has recognised in the financial statements is considered
adequate to cover any potentially irrecoverable amounts.

The entity has significant concentration of credit risk on amounts due from xxxx

The board oftrustees sets the Fund's credit policies and objectives and lays down parameters
within which the various aspects of credit risk management are operated.

b) Liquidity risk management

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the Fund Administrator, who
has built an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management of the
entity's short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements. The
entity manages liquidity risk through continuous monitoring of forecasts and actual cash flows.

The table below represents cash flows payable by the Fund under non-derivative financial
liabilities by their remaining contractual maturities at the reporting date. The amounts disclosed
in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within l2 months equal
their carrying balances, as the impact of discounting is not significant.

At 30 June 2022

Trade Payables

Current Portion Of Bonowings

Provisions

Employee Benefit Obligation

Total

At 30 June 2021

Trade Payables

Provisions

Employee Benefit Obligation

Total

ffiTrat ffirat

35

Between l-
3 months TotalDescription

Kshs Kshs

Current Portion Of Borrowings
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Notes To The Financial Statements (Continued)

c) Market risk

The board has put in place an internal audit function to assist it in assessing the risk faced by

the entity on an ongoing basis, evaluate and test the design and effectiveness of its intemal

accounting and operational controls.

Market risk is the risk arising from changes in market prices, such as interest rate, equity prices

and foreign exchange rates which will affect the entity's income or the value of its holding of
financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control

market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the retum. Overall

responsibility for managing market risk rests with the Audit and Risk Management Committee.

The Fund's Finance Department is responsible for the development of detailed risk
management policies (subject to review and approval by Audit and Risk Management

Committee) and for the day-to-day implementation of those policies.

There has been no change to the entity's exposure to market risks or the manner in which it
manages and measures the risk.

Foreign currency risk

The entity has transactional currency exposures. Such exposure arises through purchases of
goods and services that are done in currencies other than the local curency. Invoices

denominated in foreign currencies are paid after 30 days from the date of the invoice and

conversion at the time of payment is done using the prevailing exchange rate.

The carrying amount of the entity's foreign currency denominated monetary assets and

monetary liabilities at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

At 30 June 2021

Financial Assets

Investments

Cash

Debtors/ Receivables

Liabilities

Trade And Other Payables

Borrowings

Net Foreign Currency AsseU(Liability)

36

Description

Other
currencies Total

Kshs Kshs Kshs
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Notes To The Financial Statements (Continued)

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

The following table demonstrates the effect on the Fund's statement of financial performance
on applying the sensitivity for a reasonable possible change in the exchange rate ofthe three
main transaction currencies, with all other variables held constant. The reverse would also
occur if the Kenya Shilling appreciated with all other variables held constant.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the entity's financial condition may be adversely affected as a
result ofchanges in interest rate levels. The entity's interest rate risk arises from bank deposits.
This exposes the Fund to cash flow interest rate risk. The interest rate risk exposure arises
mainly from interest rate movements on the Fund's deposits.

Managemenl of interesl rate risk

To manage the interest rate risk, management has endeavoured to bank with institutions that
offer favourable interest rates.

E"S,ilivity analysis

Fund analyses its interest rate exposure on a dynamic basis by conducting a sensitivity
alysis. This involves determining the impact on profit or loss of defined rate shifts. The
nsitivity analysis for interest rate risk assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign

hange rates, remain constant. The analysis has been performed on the same basis as the
or year. Using the end ofthe year figures, the sensitivity analysis indicates the impact on the

ent of comprehensive income if current floating interest rates increase/decrease by one
entage point as a decrease/increase of Kshs r,,rx(2022: Kshs xxx ). A rate increase/decrease

f 5% would result in a decrease/increase in profit before tax of Kshs xxx (2021 - Kshs xxx)

2022

Euro t0%

USD t0%

202t

Euro t0%

USD l0o/o

Description

Change in

currency rate
Effect on surplus/

dclicit
Effect on

equity

Kshs Kshs Kshs
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Notes To The Financial Statements (Continued)

d) Capital risk management.

The objective of the Fund's capital risk management is to safeguard the Fund's ability to

continue as a going concern. Tire entity capital structure comprises of the following funds

Revaluation reserve

Revolving fund

Accumulated surPlus

Total funds

Total borrowings

C)G)Less: cash and bank balances

Net debt/(excess cash and cash equivalents)

-Yo-o/oGearing

37. Events after the reporting period

There were no material adjusting and non- adjusting events after the reporting period.

38. Ultimate and Hotding EntitY

The entity is a county Public Fund estabtished by county Assembly Members and Staffcar

Loan Regulations 12fll8;, duly gazetted under Iienya Gazetle Supplement N0.2 dated 276

Uarch'2d'tt. Its uliimate pur.ntlr the County Govemment of Mombasa and is domiciled in

Kenya.

39. Currency

The financial statements are presented in Kenya Shillings (Kshs)'

38

Description
2022-2023 202112022

Kshs Kshs
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20. Annexes

Annex I: Progress on Follow Up Of Prior Year Auditor's Recommendations

The following is the summary of issues raised by the external auditor, and management comments

that were provided to the auditor.

ce Noles:

) Use the same reference numbers as contained in the extemal audit report.

i) Obtain the "lssue/Observation" and "management comments", required above, from final

external audit report that is signed by Management.

i) Before approving the report, discuss the timeframe with the appointed Focal Point

persons within your Fund responsible for implementation of each issue.

I Inaccuracies in
the Financial
Statements

Reconciliations
done in FY2022-
2023

Resolved FY2022-2023
Reports

2 Doubtful
Receivables
from County
Treasury

Matter being
pursued with a

view to collect all
funds due.

Not
Resolved

Management
Committee

Revolving Fund
Balance
inconsistencies

Reconciliation
done in FY2022-
2023.

Resolved

Management
Committee/CASB

4 Budgetary
Control &
Performance

-underfunding /
Under
expenditure

Occasioned by
under-funding
duringFY2022-
2023

Not
resolved

Management
Committee

5 Un resolved
prior year audit
issues

Addressing of
prior years' audit
queries on going.

Not
Resolved

6 Failure to
jointly register
property
acquired
through
proceeds ofthe
Fund

Registration
process ongoing

Resolved Management
Committee

39

Reference
No. on the
external
audit Report

Issue /
Observations
from Auditor

Management
com ments

Status:
(Resolved
/ Not
Resolved)

Timeframe:
(Put o date when
you expect lhe issue
lo be resolved)

3
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(iv) Indicate the status of "Resolved" or "Not Resolved" by the date of submitting this report

to National T

Manager/Accounting offi (enter title of head of Fund)

1--9
Da

40
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Mombasa County Assembly Car Loan and Mortgage Fund

Annex II: Inter-Fund Conlirmation Letter

E rail' Countyassemblymombasa@gmail.com

Mombasa County Assembly Car Loan and Mortgage Fund
P.O. Box 80438-80100
Mombasa

COUNTY ASSEMBLY OF MOMBASA
OFFICE OF THE COUNTY ASSEMBLY CLERK

-&
P.O. Box 80438 - 80100
MOMBASA, Kenya

Confirmation of amounts received by Mombasa County Assembly Car laan and Mortgage Fund as at 30th June 2023

Amounts Disbursed by County Assembly of Mombasa (Kshs) as at 30s June 2023

Referencc
Number

Date Disbursed Recurrent (A) Development (B) lnter-Ministerial
(c)

Total
(D)<A+8rc)

Amount Received by
Car Loan and

Mortgage Fund
(KShs) as at 306 June

2023
(E)

Differences
(KShs)

(F)=(D-E)

t4/02/2023 25,000,000 2s.000,000 25,000,000
t0/03/2023 25.000,000 25,000,000 25,000,000
05/06/2023 30,000,000 30.000.000 30,000,000
t4/06/2023 25,000,000 25,000,000 25,000,000
06/07/2023 16.000.000 16,000,000 16,000,000

Total r2l.000.000 r2L000-000 121,000,000

D$e.,W.a

I confirm that the amounts shown above are correct as of the date indicated

nts d eficiary FHead of Acco

Name,........

4t

llhen replying please quote: Date:

f-/qlte
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The County Assembly of Mombasa wishes to confirm the amounts disbursed to you as at 306 June 2023 as indicated in the table below. Please compare the

amounts disbursed to you with the amounts you received and populate the column E in the table below Please sign and stamp this request in the space provided

and r€turn it to us.

42
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Mombasa County Assembly Car Loan and Mortgage Fund

Annex III: Reporting of Climate Relevant Expenditures

Ql Q2 Q3 Q4

43

Project
Name

Project
Description

Project
Obiectives

Project
Activities

Source Of
Funds

Implementing
Partners
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Annex IV: Reporting on Disaster Management Expenditure

(t|( 
_')44

Column I Column II Column III Column lV Column V Column VI Column
VII

Programme Sub-
programme

Disaster
Type

Category of disaster related Activity that

require expenditure reporting
(resDon se/recovery/m iti gation/preparednelql

Expenditure
item

Amount
(Kshs.)

Comments


